
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 14th September, 2017, 7.00 pm - Civic Centre, High Road, 
Wood Green, N22 8LE 
 
Members: Councillors Kaushika Amin (Chair), David Beacham, Stuart McNamara, 
Felicia Opoku and Lorna Reith 
 
Quorum: 3 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for live or 
subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone attending 
the meeting using any communication method.  Although we ask members of 
the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to include the 
public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting should be 
aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or recorded by 
others attending the meeting.  Members of the public participating in the 
meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral protests) 
should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or reported on.  By 
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings. 
 
The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual, or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   
 
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 



 

 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 
 

5. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  (PAGES 1 - 6) 
 
To confirm and sign the minutes of the meetings of the Standards Committee 
held on 6 July 2017. 
 

6. ADOPTION OF PLANNING PROTOCOL (2017) INTO THE CONSTITUTION  
(PAGES 7 - 44) 
 

7. UPDATE ON WORK PROGRAMME - REVIEW OF PROCEDURES AND 
MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES  (PAGES 45 - 54) 
 

8. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS   
 
To consider any items admitted at item 3 above. 
 

9. DATES OF NEXT MEETINGS   
 
16 November 2017, 8 March 2018. 
 

10. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for consideration of 
Items 11 and 12 as they contain exempt information as defined in Section 
100a of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1985); paras 1 & 2; namely information relating to any 
individual, and information likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
 

11. MINUTES OF THE STANDARDS ASSESSMENT SUB-COMMITTEE HELD 
ON 6 JULY 2017  (PAGES 55 - 58) 
 
To confirm the minutes of the Standards Assessment Sub-Committee held on 
6 July. 
 

12. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS   
 
To consider any items admitted at 3 above. 
 
 
 

 



 

Michael Kay, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager 
Tel – 020 8489 2920 
Email: michael.kay@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer 
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ 
 
Wednesday, 06 September 2017 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
HELD ON THURSDAY, 6TH JULY, 2017, 7.10  - 8.00 pm 
 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillors: Kaushika Amin (Chair), Liz Morris, Stuart McNamara, 
Felicia Opoku and Lorna Reith 
 
 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Chair drew attendees’ attention to the notice on filming at meetings. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Beacham, for whom Councillor 
Morris was attending as substitute. Councillor Morris gave apologies for lateness. 
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

5. MINUTES OF LAST MEETING  
 
The minutes of the last meeting were agreed. 
 

6. STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEES AND OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Michael Kay, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager, introduced a report that 
sought to establish the arrangements for the handling of complaints under the 
Members’ Code of Conduct, and set out the proposed work programme for the 
Committee over the coming municipal year. This included further review work of the 
Council’s procedures, as set out in the Constitution, and a fundamental review of the 
scheme of Members’ allowances. 
 
In discussion on the proposed work programme, the following points were made: 

1. Members indicated that they would likely want to consult with Members 
more widely on proposals for a new allowances scheme. The form of this 
consultation could be discussed at the November meeting, when they would 
have opportunity to consider proposals for a new scheme.  

Page 1 Agenda Item 5



 

 

2. Members had suggestions of roles currently not in receipt of an allowance 
that should be, given the level of commitment and responsibility they 
entailed – for example, the Vice Chair of the Regulatory Committee.  

3. The new allowances scheme ought to provide for potential outcomes of the 
May 2018 elections, and may need to include flexible provisions, for 
example on the number or size of political groups.  

4. The next meeting should receive information on levels of allowance 
elsewhere. 

 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Committee: 

a. Agree the membership of the Standards Assessment Sub Committee and 
the Standards Hearing Sub Committee, as set out at 5.3 of the report 

b. Note the proposals for the Committee’s outline work programme  
 

7. PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION  
 
Victoria Barman, Senior Project Lawyer (Corporate), introduced a report that set out 
proposed changes to the Constitution in four main areas – noting the establishment of 
the joint sub-committee of the Health and Wellbeing Board with Islington, removing 
the Council and Employees Joint Consultative Committee from the Constitution, a 
review of the Statutory, Proper and Specified Officer functions within the Officer 
Scheme of Delegation, and other minor amendments for clarification purposes. These 
proposals had been deferred from the March meeting of the Standards Committee 
without consideration, and had been presented to Members in a briefing session in 
May. 
 
The following points were made in discussion: 

1. It would be helpful if the Constitution were clear on the implications of being a 
political group within the Council, including the entitlement to a Political 
Assistant. 

2. Early circulation of potential changes to the Constitution would be helpful in 
allowing more Members to have opportunity to consider the changes and 
potentially attend the Standards Committee meeting where they would be 
considered. It was also noted that that may be difficult to achieve in practice, 
but was a good ambition and the Standards Committee ought to consider 
whether proposed changes should be consulted on further when presented 
with them. 

3. That, rather than full sections being included in papers, future meetings could 
be furnished with only extracts showing proposed changes to the Constitution, 
with a full Constitution available for reference. 

4. That it may be helpful for a glossary to be prepared, helping the reader 
understand terms used throughout the Constitution.   

 
In addition to the proposed changes set out in the report, Members agreed that they 
would recommend Full Council reduce the threshold for the registering of gifts and 
hospitality to £25 or above, and that that ought to be included in the Members’ Code 
of Conduct.  
 

Page 2



 

 

RESOLVED 
 
That the Committee recommend full Council: 

 
a) Note the establishment of a joint sub-committee of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board with Islington Council and consequently, agree the 
following amendments to the Constitution: 

 
(i) Part 2, ‘Articles’ at paragraph 4.02 (v) and 10.09 (Appendix 6 of 

the report);  

(ii) Part 3, Section B ‘Responsibility for functions: Full Council and 

Non-Executive Bodies’ at Section 1 paragraph 1(v) and Section 2 

paragraph 8.1 (Appendix 1 of the report) 

 
b) Note the removal of the Council and Employees Joint Consultative 

Committee at Part 3, Section B ‘Responsibility for functions: Full Council 
and Non-Executive Bodies’ at Section 3 paragraph 1 (Appendix 1 of the 
report); and associated amendment at Part 4, Section B ‘Committee 
Procedure Rules’ rule 58 (Appendix 7 of the report), following the 
decision of the Staffing and remuneration Committee to dissolve this 
sub-committee; 

 
 

c)  Approve changes to Statutory, Proper and Specified Officer functions 
within the Officer Scheme of Delegation together with minor 
amendments, for clarification purposes, as set out at:   

 
(i) Part 3, Section E Officer Scheme of Delegation at Section 3 

‘Delegations to the Chief Executive and Statutory Officers’ 

(Appendix 2 of the report); 

(ii) Part 3, Section E Officer Scheme of Delegation at Section 4 

‘Proper Officer and Specified Officer Functions’ (Appendix 3 of the 

report); 

d) Approve minor amendments to the Constitution for clarification purposes, 
as set out at:  

 
(i) Part 2, ‘Articles’ (Appendix 6 of the report); 

(ii) Part 3, Section B ‘Responsibility for functions: Full Council and 

Non-Executive Bodies’ at Section 1 paragraph 1(g) and Section 3 

(Appendix 1 of the report); 

(iii) Part 3, Section D ‘Responsibility for functions: Local Choice  

Functions’ at point 16 (Appendix 4 of the report); 

(iv) Part 3, New Section DA ‘Responsibility for functions: Joint 

Committees and arrangements’, to record such arrangements 

entered into by the Council where these joint committees carry out 

functions on behalf of the authority (Appendix 5 of the report); 

Page 3



 

 

(v) Part 4, Section B ‘Committee Procedure Rules’ (Appendix 7 of the 

report) 

 

e)  Approve the following work streams to be taken forward to update and 
maintain the Constitution:  

 
(i) Following the departure of the AD for Corporate Property and 

Major projects, there will need to be further amendments to the 

Officer Scheme of Delegation.  Council is asked to authorise 

appropriate amendments to be made to the Constitution by the 

Monitoring Officer.  

Until the reallocation of responsibilities has been determined by 

the Chief Executive, the existing rules identifying the relevant 

officer(s) to make decisions in the absence of the AD Corporate 

Property and Major Projects will pertain; 

(ii) A review of the Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution in 

order to reduce duplication and inconsistencies, and make them 

easier to follow. These changes will reported to Standards 

Committee in due course and on to full Council thereafter; 

(iii) A review of the Planning Protocol (currently outside the 

Constitution) is being carried out by Planning Sub-Committee and 

Regulatory Committee. This will be reported to the Standards 

Committee in September 2017 for approval as part of the 

Constitution, and for confirmation by full Council thereafter; 

(iv) A wholesale review of the Member – Officer Protocol, to reflect 

changes to the Council structure, governance, and officer powers, 

and bring the document up-to-date with current practices. These 

changes will reported to Standards Committee in due course and 

on to full Council thereafter. 

 

f) Approve changes to the Members’ Code of Conduct to reflect the need 
to register gifts and hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25. 

 
8. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None 
 

9. DATES OF NEXT MEETINGS  
 
14 September, 16 November and 8 March. 
 

10. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
Resolved. 
 

11. MINUTES OF MEETINGS OF THE ASSESSMENT SUB COMMITTEE  

Page 4



 

 

 
The minutes of the meetings of the Standards Assessment Sub Committee held on 21 
February and 11 May were confirmed. 
 

12. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None 
 

 
CHAIR: Councillor Kaushika Amin 
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 3  

 
Report for:  Standards Committee 
 
Title: Adoption of Planning Protocol (2017) into the Constitution 
 
Report  
authorised by :  Emma Williamson – Assistant Director Planning x5507 
 
Lead Officer: Ben Burgerman – Regeneration Lawyer, x4631 
 
 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Non Key 
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 The Council Constitution governs the organisation of Council decision 

making. It is kept under review and when necessary, amendments are 
proposed to Standards Committee for consideration and recommendation 
on to Full Council, in accordance with Article 14.03 (Changes to the 
Constitution). 
 

1.2 This report proposes change to the Constitution by the addition of the 
Planning Protocol. 

 
1.3 This report asks members to agree this change and to recommend that Full 

Council resolve to adopt the Planning Protocol as part of the Constitution. 
 
 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
          Not applicable 
 
3. Recommendations  

 
3.1 That the Standards Committee recommend Full Council adopt the Planning 
Protocol as part of the Constitution.  

 
4. Reasons for decision  

 
4.1 The proposed change to the Council Constitution seeks to ensure that: 
a) by becoming part of the Constitution the Planning Protocol will carry greater 
weight and will enable efficient, open, accountable and lawful decision-making 
by the Planning Sub-Committee; 
b) the Planning Sub-Committee procedures will be more transparent; and 
c) it will be easier for members and the public to find the Planning Protocol and 
understand how it operates in relation to the rest of the Constitution and in 
particular the Members’ Code of Conduct  
 

Page 7 Agenda Item 6



 

Page 2 of 3  

4.2 Councils are required to have and maintain a Constitution. Failure to make 
this change to keep the Constitution up to date could lead to confusion around 
the procedures, processes and authority for Planning Sub-Committee decisions 
and those decisions being challenged in court. 

 
5. Alternative options considered 

 
5.1 The option of making no change was considered i.e. leaving the Planning 
Protocol outside the Constitution. However, since it is important that the 
governance and processes of the Council are transparent and understood by 
those making the decisions and those impacted by them this alternative option 
was not considered appropriate. 
 

6. Background information 
 
6.1 Consistency, fairness and transparency are essential in maintaining public 

confidence in any regulatory function, The purpose of the Planning Protocol 
is to: 
 

(a) state how members of the Planning Sub-Committee will exercise 
those functions, including behaviour in relation to applicants, 
residents and other third parties;   

(b) ensure a consistent and proper approach by all members in the 
exercise of the planning functions; 

(c) ensure applicants and their agents, residents and other third parties 
are dealt with by members consistently, openly and fairly  

(d)  ensure probity of planning transactions and the highest standards of 
conduct expected in public office; 

(e) ensure planning decisions are made openly, fairly and in the public 
interest, in accordance with legislation and guidance; and 

(f) state how the Planning Sub-Committee meeting runs including 
speaking arrangements. 

 
6.2 The Planning Protocol is intended to be supplementary to the Members’ 

Code of Conduct (Part Five of the Constitution). The purpose of the Protocol 
is to provide more detailed guidance as to the how the standards of conduct 
expected of members apply within a planning context, for instance detailing 
interaction between members of the Planning Sub-Committee and 
developers and objectors to planning applications. 

 
6.3 Given the complexities of and many changes to planning law it has been 

necessary to update the Planning Protocol nearly every year. This year very 
minor changes were made to it as endorsed by the Regulatory Committee at 
meetings on 6 and 31 July 2017. The length and procedures of the Planning 
Protocol remain unaffected by these changes. These changes made the 
existing procedures clearer and included deleting an erroneous reference to 
a separate complaints procedure as such a procedure is in fact the same as 
used for the Members’ Code of Conduct, to which the Planning Protocol is 
subordinate. Several typos and out of date references were also corrected. 

 

Page 8



 

Page 3 of 3  

6.4 It is expected that if included within the Constitution the Planning Protocol 
will remain subject to regular review, with the changes having to be 
approved and adopted by Full Council as part of its regular constitutional 
review and update. 

 
6.5 As the Planning Protocol was not part of the Constitution there has been 

some confusion as to its actual status and the weight it should be accorded. 
There has been the problem that as it is not listed on the Council’s 
Constitution webpage it has been difficult to find. 
 

6.6 It is also noted that most other authorities have their equivalent of the 
Planning Protocol included as part of their constitutions.It is important that 
the governance and processes of the Council are transparent and 
understood both by those making the decisions and those impacted by 
them. Therefore, as best practice and in light of the above, it is 
recommended that the Planning Protocol be adopted by Full Council as part 
of the Constitution. 

 
7. Contribution to strategic outcomes 

 
7.1 The Council’s Constitution supports the governance of the Council and its 
decision making thereby assisting the Council to meet its strategic outcomes. 

 
8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 

procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
 
8.1 Finance and Procurement 
8.2 No financial implications arise from this report. 
 
8.3 Legal 
 
8.4 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance has been consulted on and 
involved in the preparation of this report with assistance from officers in 
departments. Legal comments are included in the body of the report where 
appropriate. 
 
8.5 Equality 
8.6 There are no equality matters in this report, given it relates to how the 
Constitution sets out the Council’s structure and operations. 
 

9. Use of Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Planning Protocol (2017). 
 

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
10.1 The Council Constitution which can be found at; 
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/local-democracy/about-council/council-constitution 

 

Page 9

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/local-democracy/about-council/council-constitution


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

1 
 

Planning Protocol 2017 
 
 

1. PURPOSE OF THE PROTOCOL 
 
1.01. This Protocol has been adopted by Haringey Council to ensure 

the highest standards of probity in the performance of its planning 
function.   

 
1.02. Consistency, fairness and openness are important qualities for 

any regulatory function in the public eye and they are vital to the 
conduct of a planning committee.  Adherence to the Protocol is 
intended to build public confidence in the Council's planning 
system. 

 
1.03. The purpose of the Protocol is: 
 

(a) to state how the Members of the Planning Sub-Committee 
will exercise those functions, including behaviour in relation 
to applicants, residents and other third parties; 
 

(b) to ensure a consistent and proper approach by all 
Members to the exercise of planning functions; 
 

(c) to ensure applicants and their agents, residents and other 
third parties are dealt with by Members consistently, 
openly and fairly; 
 

(d) to ensure the probity of planning transactions and the high 
standards expected in public office; and 
 

(e) to ensure planning decisions are made openly, fairly and in 
the public interest, in accordance with legislation and 
guidance. 

 
1.04. This Protocol relating to planning matters is intended to be 

supplementary to The Members‟ Code of Conduct (Part Five 
Section A of the Council‟s Constitution). The Localism Act 2011 
sets out a duty for each local authority to promote and maintain 
high standards of conduct by councillors and to adopt a local 
code of conduct.  The Council adopted a Code of Corporate 
Governance in July 2008 which was updated in July 2013 and 
contains 6 key principles based on the Nolan Committee on 
Standards in Public Life.  The provisions of the Code of Conduct 
continue to have full force and effect. The purpose of this Protocol 
is to provide more detailed guidance on the application of the 
guidance in relation to planning matters. 

 

Page 11



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

2 
 

1.05. Copies of this Protocol will be made publicly available online and 
will be kept under review. 

 

2. BACKGROUND TO THE COUNCIL'S PLANNING 
FUNCTIONS  

 
Determination of Applications 
 
2.01. The planning process is governed by legislation, both primary and 

secondary, and in particular the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
(as amended) (“the 1990 Act”), the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004 (as amended) (“the 2004 Act”), the Planning Act 2008 and the 
Localism Act 2011. The National Planning Policy Framework (“NPPF”) 
together with Government guidance set out in the National Planning 
Practice Guidance provides a policy context for the preparation of 
statutory plans and the discharge of a Local Planning Authority‟s 
functions. In addition, the Courts have also provided a large body of 
“case law” in respect of planning matters. 

 
2.02. Planning law requires the Local Planning Authority (“LPA”) to 

determine all planning applications "in accordance with the 
development plan unless material planning considerations indicate 
otherwise" (Section 38(6) 2004 Act). The development plan in 
Haringey comprises the London Plan together with the Council‟s 
local plan and when adopted futher local plan documents (e.g. area 
action plans) and if applicable neighbourhood development plans 

(together “the Development Plan”)..  In cases of development 
involving works within a conservation area, or where the 
development is likely to affect the setting of a listed building, 
Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990 contains a duty on the Council to the desirability 
of preserving the listed building or its setting and Section 72 of 
that Act requires LPAs to pay special attention to the desirability 
of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a 
conservation area. In accordance with paragraph 197 of the 
NPPF, in assessing and determining development proposals, 
LPAs should apply the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development.  
 

2.03. The responsibilities of the LPA must be performed without undue 
influence or consideration of a personal interest. When 
determining planning applications Members must only take into 
account the Development Plan and any material planning 
considerations.  The Members of the authority are elected to 
represent the interests of the whole community in planning 
matters.  Views relating to material planning considerations 

expressed by neighbouring occupiers, local residents and any 
other third parties must be taken into account but local opposition 
or support for a proposal is not in itself a ground for refusing or 
granting planning permission. 

Page 12



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

3 
 

 
2.04. The planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of 

one person against the activities of another. The basic question is not 
whether owners and occupiers of neighbouring properties would 
experience financial or other impacts as a result of a particular 
development, but whether the proposal would unacceptably affect 
amenities and the existing use of land and buildings which ought to be 
protected in the public interest. 

 
Enforcement 
 
2.05. The purpose of the planning enforcement provisions is to protect the 

integrity of the planning system and the development control process. 
Whether to take enforcement action in any particular case and what 
action to take in the circumstances are matters for the authority's 
discretion.  The existence of a breach of planning control is not in itself 
grounds for the institution of enforcement action.  Paragraph 207 of the 
NPPF provides that “Effective enforcement is important as a means of 
maintaining public confidence in the planning system. Enforcement 
action is discretionary, and LPAs should act proportionately in 
responding to suspected breaches of planning control. LPAs should 
consider publishing a local enforcement plan to manage enforcement 
proactively, in a way that is appropriate to their area. This should set 
out how they will monitor the implementation of planning permissions, 
investigate alleged cases of unauthorised development and take action 
where it is appropriate to do so”. 

 
2.06. Haringey Council has published a guide to planning enforcement (July 

2012) which sets out the Council‟s approach to the enforcement of 
breaches of planning control. This will be regularly reviewed and used 
to guide decisions in respect of planning enforcement by officers and, 
where required, Members.   

 
Appeals to the Secretary of State 
 
2.07. An applicant who has not received a determination within the 

requisite period of time; has been refused planning permission or 
other approval; or who is unhappy with conditions attached to a 
permission granted, and those responsible for developments the 
subject of enforcement action, have a right of appeal to the 
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government (“the 
Secretary of State”).  If it is shown that the Council's conduct in 
dealing with the matter was unreasonable, the appellant's costs 
may be awarded against the Council.  The most frequent example 
of unreasonable behaviour is a failure to substantiate an 
authority's decision on the relevant planning grounds in the 
particular case. 

 
Other Powers of the Secretary of State 
 

Page 13



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

4 
 

2.08. The Secretary of State possesses a range of powers which could 
be exercised where a LPA appears to be making inconsistent 
decisions or decisions which are seriously in conflict with national 
and Development Plan policies.  This could involve use of the 
power to "call in" applications, so the application would be 
determined by the Secretary of State following a public inquiry.  A 
permission granted by the Council can in special circumstances 
be revoked, modified or discontinued. Such decisions may be 
subject to compensation payable by the Council. 

 
2.09. In addition there is the power in Section 62A 1990 Act (inserted by 

Section 1 of the Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013) which allows 
certain applications to be made directly to the Secretary of State, where 
the LPA for the area has been designated for this purpose.  
Designation can occur in circumstances where the LPA‟s performance 
in terms of its decision making falls short of pre-determined criteria for 
the timeliness or quality of decisions in respect of major applications. 
These criteria will be kept under review by the Secretary of State and 
any changes thereto will be laid before Parliament.  

 
Powers of the Mayor of London 
 
2.10. The Mayor of London possesses a range of planning powers with 

regards to developments taking place in London. For strategic 
developments1, the Mayor has the power to allow the LPA to determine 
the application itself, direct refusal of the planning application or to take 
over the application for determination. The London Plan sets out the 
Mayor‟s policies and guidance for development taking place within 
London, in particular major developments or those with London wide 
significance. The Mayor can in certain circumstances prevent 
developments going ahead that are inconsistent with the London Plan.  

 
Administration of Planning Functions in Haringey 
 
2.11. The performance of the Council's planning function is largely 

delegated to the Planning Sub-Committee, and to officers of the 
Council pursuant to arrangements made under Section 101 of the 
Local Government Act 1972. Approximately 9 out of 10 planning 
decisions in Haringey are made by officers, through authority 
delegated to them by the Council. This level of delegated decision 
making is consistent with other Councils across the Country and 
allows the majority of planning decisions to be determined 
promptly, allowing Members of the committee to focus on the 
most significant and controversial proposals.   

 

                                              
1
 The Town and Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2008 sets out the range of 

applications on which the Mayor should be consulted.  These include development of more 

than 150 dwellings, development of more than 15,000 square metres and buildings over 30 

metres high 

Page 14



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

5 
 

2.12. Many decisions are made under delegated powers by the 
Assistant Director, Planning or Head of Development 
Management in accordance with a scheme of delegation.  (See 
the Terms of Reference of the Planning Sub-Committee in the 
Constitution).  

 
Planning Applications by Councillors or Officers of the Council 
 
2.13.  When a planning application is submitted by a serving councillor; or 

more senior officers  (tier 3 or above); or officers within the planning 
directorate;  or  by a close relative or a close friend of either an officer 
or Councillor; or by a councillor acting as agent for the applicant, the 
councillor or officer concerned will: 

 take no part in the processing and determination of the 
application; and  

 advise the Monitoring Officer and the Assistant Director, 

Planning/Head of Development Management of the application. 

2.14.  All such applications will be reported to the Planning Sub-Committee 
and determined by the Sub-Committee and not by an officer under 
delegated powers.  

2.15. The report of the Assistant Director, Planning/Head of Development 
Management will include confirmation from the Monitoring Officer that 
these requirements have been met.  

Planning Applications by the Council 
 
2.16.  Subject to the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 

General Regulations 1992 planning applications made by or on 
behalf of the Council will be treated in the same way as those 
made by or on behalf of private applicants.  

 
Delegation to Officers 

2.17.    All Planning applications can be decided under delegated powers save 
for those reserved in the Constitution for determination by Planning 
Sub-committee. 

2.18. Where officers are determining applications under their delegated 
powers, an officer report will be completed which must record the 
material planning considerations that have been taken into account in 
the decision making process. 

2.19.  The Planning Sub-Committee will receive, for its information, a regular 
report identifying the planning applications which have been determined 
by officers under the scheme of delegation, and the decisions thereon. 

   
Referring applications to the Planning Sub-Committee 

Page 15



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

6 
 

 
2.20.  All members of the Council receive copies of the weekly 

listdetailing the applications that have been received.  

2.21. If a Member wishes an application to go before the Planning Sub-
Committee rather than be determined through officer delegation, 
he/she should make this request as soon as possible (and within the 21 
day neighbour notification period) and ensure that any such request 
states the planning grounds on which it is based.  The Assistant 

Director, Planning/Head of Development Management in consultation 
with the Chair of the Sub-Committee will consider such requests and 
whether the application should be referred to the Sub-Committee.  The 
criteria to be used for determining such requests will include: 

 whether the proposal is a significant development which has 
caused substantial local interest; 

 where the officer recommendation is for approval contrary to 
policy in the Development Plan or other adopted guidance; and 

 whether the application is recommended for approval. 
Applications that are to be refused will not normally be 
determined at planning committee. 

 
2.22. The Assistant Director, Planning is responsible and accountable 

to the Council for the Planning and Development Service which 
deals with the administration of all planning matters.  The Head of 
Development Management is responsible and accountable to the 
Assistant Director, Planning for the immediate management of the 
Council's development management function. 

 
 

3. APPLICATION OF THE PROTOCOL 

 
3.01. The Protocol applies to the conduct of Members in relation to all 

applications for permission/approval under planning legislation.  
The Protocol also applies to decisions to take or not to take 
planning enforcement action.  The principles (below) would also 
apply where consideration was to be given to the inclusion or 
otherwise of specific proposals within the statutory local plan even 
when the Sub-Committee was being consulted informally rather 
than making the final decision. 
 

3.02. The Protocol also applies to any other item before the Sub-
Committee. This can include the lists of major applications and 
delegated decisions. For these, as with all items, Members should 
ensure that all comments they make are appropriate for the Sub-
Committee forum, and relate to a Council wide issue or concern that 
is not better dealt with by raising directly with officers outside of Sub-
Committee. 

 

Page 16



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

7 
 

3.03. In the following sections references to determination of planning 
applications should be taken as referring also to all these other 
matters. 

 
 

4. THE MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
4.01. The Members‟ Code of Conduct (“the Code of Conduct”) applies to 

Members of the Planning Sub-Committee as to all Members of 
the Council. The parts of the Code of Conduct on personal and 
prejudicial interests, the register of those interests and receipt of 
gifts and hospitality are particularly relevant. Members of the Sub-
Committee should also have regard to the general principles of 
conduct when exercising their planning functions. 

 
 

5. CONDUCT OF MEMBERS OF PLANNING SUB-
COMMITTEE 

 
Training 
 
5.01. The Council will ensure that all Members of the Planning Sub-

Committee have undertaken appropriate training on planning 
legislation and relevant matters prior to their participation in the 
work of the Sub-Committee. The Council will make available 
regular updates/training for Planning Members, and will 
encourage all other Members of the Council to take part in 
planning training. 

 
5.02. For Planning Sub-Committee Members and substitute Members 

of the Planning Sub-Committee there is a requirement to 
undertake training prior to sitting on the Committee. Ongoing 
training is required and each Member should undertake at least  5 
hours of training per annum. 

 
General Principles 
 
5.03. This section of the protocol applies solely to Members of the 

Council's Planning Sub-Committee when determining planning 
applications or considering the inclusion of local plan proposals or 
resolving to take planning enforcement action. It is intended to 
ensure that the integrity of the decision making process is not 
impaired, either in reality or in perception, through a lack of 
openness in decision-making, or through the lobbying of those 
Members who will make decisions. 

 
5.04. This part of the protocol is also designed to ensure that, wherever 

possible, representations made to Members form part of the 
public information leading to any decision. 

 

Page 17



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

8 
 

5.05. The conduct of Members of the Council who are not Members of 
the Planning Sub-Committee is governed by the next section of 
the protocol, where greater flexibility is permitted, and where 
those Members are given greater freedom to discharge their role 
as representatives of the local community within a clear 
framework. 

 
5.06. The Council (which unless otherwise stated means acting as LPA) 

has a responsibility to make decisions with knowledge of the 
relevant Development Plan policies, taking into account all other 
material considerations and any representations, applying the 
appropriate weight to each. In addition, it is important that elected 
Members receive open and impartial professional advice from 
their Planning Officers.  Members should make planning 
decisions by reference to a written officers' report.  

 
5.07. This can only be done at the Sub-Committee. Conclusions 

reached in advance of the Sub-Committee risk being on partial 
facts, without the relevant advice, and without the ability to view 
all the material considerations before applying appropriate weight. 
They are therefore open to misunderstanding, and possibly, to 
legal challenge on the grounds that the right things have not been 
taken into account, or immaterial things have been taken into 
account, or that the Members concerned have been subject to 
“bias” or “pre-determination”.  

 
5.08. For these reasons Members should not reach or express any firm 

conclusion on an application prior to the relevant Sub-Committee 
meeting. If, for any reason a Member decides, in advance of the 
Sub-Committee meeting, to express a firm and final view on the 
development, he or she shall not take part in the deliberations of 
the Sub-Committee but may exercise the rightsbelow. 

 
5.09. Where any Member makes representations to the „Planning 

Service‟, in writing or orally, in relation to any application, those 
representations will be recorded for inclusion in the officers‟ 
report. Where these representations constitute a firm and final 
view on the development, the Member will not take part in the 
deliberations of the Sub-Committee but may exercise the rights 
below. 
 

Open and fair decisions 
 
5.10  At the London Borough of Haringey decisions on controversial planning 

applications are taken in public by the Planning Sub-Committee.  
 

For a decision to be open and fair:  
 

 Those taking the decision should not be biased or have pre-
determined how they will decide; 

Page 18



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

9 
 

 Those taking the decision should not have a disclosable 

pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest (see below for further 

information about these)  in the outcome; 

 The decision should be consistent with others taken previously 
unless there are good reasons to decide otherwise; and 

 The reasons for the decisions should be clearly set out. 
 
Bias or predetermination 
 
5.11   It is entirely permissible for Planning Sub-Committee Members, who are 

democratically accountable decision makers, to be predisposed 
towards a particular outcome. Nonetheless they must address the 
planning issues before them fairly and on their merits. That means they 
can have a view on the application or matter but must not make up 
their minds on how to vote before formally considering the application 
and any representations.  Planning Sub-Committee Members must 
have an open mind to the merits of a proposal before it is formally 
considered at the Sub-Committee meeting and they must be prepared 
to be persuaded by a different view in the light of any detailed 
arguments or representations concerning the particular matter under 
consideration. 

 
5.12. If the Sub-Committee‟s decision on a planning application is challenged 

in the High Court by way of judicial review on the grounds that some of 
the Sub-Committee Members were biased, or had predetermined the 
application, the court will assess the case on the basis of what a fair-
minded observer, knowing the relevant facts would think. 
 

5.13. Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 provides that a decision maker is 
not to be taken to have had, or appeared to have had, a closed mind 
when making the decision just because: 

 

 the decision maker had previously done anything that directly or 
indirectly indicated what view the decision maker took, or would 
or might take, in relation to a matter; and  

 the matter was relevant to the decision.  
 
5.14. This provision does not change the law on bias and pre-determination 

which means that Sub-Committee Members must still take planning 
decisions with an open mind and having taken into account all relevant 
material planning considerations. What s.25 does provide is that 
statements made by Members cannot be used in court as evidence 
that the Member in question had or appeared to have a closed mind. 
Other evidence or any evidence that a Member has taken into account 
irrelevant considerations, however, is not so restricted by s.25. 

 
5.15. Notwithstanding the s.25 provisions, the safest course is for Sub-

Committee Members to avoid making public statements (including 
expressing views in emails) as to their support for or opposition to any 
application which would indicate they had made up their minds before 

Page 19



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

10 
 

the formal consideration of the application at the meeting. If a Sub-
Committee Member has made such a statement they must be satisfied 
that they can still consider the application with an open mind and are 
prepared to take into account any new matters or any new arguments 
in favour of or against the proposed development until the decision is 
made otherwise they should not take part in any decision on the 
application in question. In which case it is to be treated the same as any 
other prejudicial interest, as will cases of perceived bias, and the Member 
shall declare this interest and leave the room for the item in question as 
set out below. 

 
Declaring an interest 
 
5.16.   It is important that Sub-Committee Members should not be influenced 

or perceived to be influenced by any interests that they, their family or 
close associates may have in a particular application. To this end at the 
start of every Sub-Committee meeting Sub-Committee Members will be 
asked to declare any interests they may have in relation to the matters 
before them. As outlined in the Code of Conduct, “disclosable 
pecuniary interests” are prescribed by law and are entered in the 
register of interests maintained by the Council‟s Monitoring Officer. The 
Code of Conduct also provides for the disclosure of other interests at 
meetings in certain circumstances. It is not sufficient for a Member to 
only state they have „an interest‟. When declaring an interest the 
Member must describe what the interest in question actually entails.  

 
Disclosable pecuniary interests 
 
5.17. „Disclosable pecuniary interests‟ are prescribed by the Relevant 

Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 and are 
set out in Appendix A to the Code of Conduct. The categories of 
disclosable pecuniary interests include employment or office, interests 
in land in the Borough and contracts with the Council. 

 
5.18.  An interest is a „disclosable pecuniary interest‟ if it is of a type 

described above and it is an interest of the Member or of their spouse 
or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as husband and wife 
or a person with whom they are living as if they were civil partners and 
the Member is aware of the interest. Members should note the criminal 
sanctions for failure to comply with these requirements (as outlined in 
Appendix B of the Code of Conduct). 

 
Other interests 
 
5.19.   A Sub-Committee Member may have other interests such as „Personal‟ 

or „Prejudicial‟ interests which, whilst not falling within the legal 
definition of disclosable pecuniary interests should, it is strongly 
advised, be declared in the public interest.  For example, such an 
interest may arise where the Sub-Committee Member resides near a 
development which is the subject of the planning application under 

Page 20



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

11 
 

consideration.  While it is for the Sub-Committee Member to judge, a 
useful rule of thumb is “will my enjoyment of my property be affected 
either positively or negatively by this application?”  If the answer is in 
the affirmative, it would be advisable for the Sub-Committee Member to 
declare such an interest.  

 
5.20. A prejudicial interest would also arise, for example, if the affected 

property were to be owned by a company of which the Sub-Committee 
Member is a director.  
 

5.21. Advice is given below regarding what Sub-Committee Members and 
non-Sub-Committee Members should do if they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or other interest in an application due to be 
considered at a Sub-Committee meeting. 
 

5.22. It is important to note that the rules relating to declarations of interest 
apply equally to non-Sub-Committee Members who may from time to 
time wish to attend a Sub-Committee meeting and speak on a 
particular matter.  Each Member who attends a meeting must make an 
assessment of whether they have an interest in the matters under 
discussion, whether they intend to participate in proceedings or not.   

 
Consistency 
 
5.23.   Decisions will not be seen as fair if they are different from those taken 

on previous similar cases without good reason. The Sub-Committee 
report will set out the relevant considerations and will draw attention to 
decisions on any other similar cases where appropriate. 

 
Reasons 
 
5.24. Fair and open decision making requires the reasons for the decision to 

be clear. This is particularly important when the Sub-Committee‟s 
decision differs from that recommended in the report. 

 
5.25.   Members will want to actively and positively engage with planning 

decisions.    All Members can: 
 

• advise objectors/applicants/others on planning processes and 
how to get involved; 

• give advice about adopted planning policies and local priorities 
• direct lobbyists, applicants or objectors to the relevant planning 

officer so that their opinions can be included in the officer‟s 
report; 

• lead on local discussions in the preparation of the development 
plan documents, area action plans and supplementary planning 
documents; 

• provide input into the preparation of planning briefs and 
guidance; 

Page 21



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

12 
 

• receive and pass on information, for example weekly lists and 
briefings from officers on key proposals; 

• attend Development Management Forum meetings, ask 
questions there; and 

• raise issues important to local people and to the developers. 
 
5.26. To ensure that Members and the Council are not open to challenge 
           Members should: 
 

•   preface relevant discussions with a disclaimer; the nature of 
this will depend on their role within the authority in the context 
of planning; 

•   clearly indicate that any discussions with them are not binding 
on the Council; 

•   be clear about the distinction between giving advice and 
engaging in negotiation so only engaging in the former; 

•   involve officers where this will help to safeguard transparency 
and the appearance of bias; 

•   be aware of relevant policies included in the Council‟s 
adopted plans but give consideration to other matters relevant 
to planning; and 

•   seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer when they are 
unsure of what they are able to do and in relation to any 
potential “interest”. 

 
5.27. Members should not: 
 

• expect to lobby and actively support or resist an 
application/decision and subsequently vote at committee or 
Cabinet; or 

• seek to put undue pressure on officers or Members of a deciding 
committee to support a particular course of action in relation to a 
planning application or other planning decision.  

 
This does not mean that a Councillor may not question robustly or 
argue forcefully for a particular course of action. 

 
Pre-Committee procedures 
 
Developer‟s briefings to Planning Sub-Committee 

 
5.28.  Enabling a Developer to brief and seek the views of elected 

Members about planning proposals at an early stage (usually pre-
application or where this is not possible, very early in the formal 
application period) is important in ensuring that new development 
is responsive to and reflects local interests/concerns where 
possible. Early member engagement in the planning process is 
encouraged and supported by the NPPF.  Haringey proposes to 
achieve this objective through formal briefings of the Planning 
Sub-Committee in accordance with procedures set out in this 

Page 22



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

13 
 

Protocol.  No decision will be taken at such meetings and the final 
applications will be the subject of a report to a future meeting of 
the Sub-Committee. These meetings are held in public and are 
webcast although there are no public speaking rights. 

 
5.29. The purpose of briefings are: 

 
•  To enable Members to provide feedback that supports the 

development of high quality development through the pre-
application process, and avoid potential delays at later stages; 

• To ensure Members are aware of significant applications prior 
to them being formally considered by the Planning Sub-
Committee; 

•  To make subsequent Planning Sub-Committee consideration 
more informed and effective; 

•  To ensure issues are identified early in the application process, 
and improve the quality of applications; and 

•  To ensure Members are aware when applications raise issues 
of corporate or strategic importance. 

 
5.30. What sort of presentations would be covered in the briefings? 
 

•  Presentations on proposed large-scale developments of more 
than 50 dwellings, or 5,000 sq m of commercial or other 
floorspace or which includes significant social, community, 
health or education facilities, or where the Assistant Director, 
Planning/Head of Development Management considers early 
discussion of the issues would be useful; and 

•  Presentations on other significant applications, such as those 
critical to the Council‟s regeneration programmes, significant 
Council developments, or those requested by the Chair of the 
Sub-Committee. 

 
5.31. Frequency and timings of meetings 
 

Once a month or by agreement with the Chair and Assistant Director, 
Planning/Head of Development for all Members of the Planning Sub-
Committee plus Cabinet Members and Ward Members – supported by 
Assistant Director, Planning/Head of Development Management and 
other relevant officers. 

 
5.32. Format of the meetings 
 

•  The meeting will be chaired by the Chair of the Planning Sub-
Committee who will ask Members attending to disclose any 
relevant interests; and 

•  The Developer will supply all presentation materials including 
any models, and these will be displayed in the meeting room; 

Page 23



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

14 
 

•  Officers to introduce the proposal and advise of issues arising 
from the Development Management Forum (where this has 
taken place): 

o The Developer and agents will be invited to make a presentation 
of up to 15 minutes; 

o Ward Members will have the opportunity to give their views for a 
maximum of three minutes each.  

o The Cabinet Members will have the opportunity to give their 
views for three minutes. 

o Members of the Planning Sub-Committee will be able to ask 
questions to the Developer and officers.  These questions will be 
restricted to points of fact or clarification and must be structured 
in a way that would not lead to a member being perceived as 
taking a fixed position on the proposals; 

o Comments of Members of the Planning Sub-Committee; and 
o Summary of the comments raised. 

 
5.33. A short note of the meeting summarising Members‟ comments would 

be made. 
 
Other matters 
 
5.34. Developer participation in the Developers‟ briefings would not normally 

happen prior to a Development Management Forum or other public 
meeting or public consultation being held relating to the site or prior to 
attendance at the Quality Review Panel subject to programming and 
scheduling pressures.  

 
5.35. Comments and questions can be raised, and this can also include 

positive engagement about the proposed development. However, 
Members should ensure that they are not seen to pre-determine or 
close their mind to any such proposal as otherwise they may then be 
precluded from participating in determining the application. 

 
Development Management Forum 
 
5.37. The Council has established a Development Management Forum to 

facilitate the discussion of large-scale or contentious planning proposals. 
The forum does not reach a decision about a proposal.  Its purpose is to 
allow participants to raise issues of concern and obtain answers to 
questions about the particular application. The aim is to allow early 
discussion by Members and members of the public on planning issues 
related to these planning proposals and to explore the scope for 
agreement between all parties in a positive and constructive way prior to 
the later decision being made at the Planning Sub-Committee.  Forum 
meetings will usually take place prior to the submission of an application 
but can take place at an early stage of the formal process before the 
Planning Sub-Committee meeting. They do not remove the opportunity 
for objectors, supporters and applicants to address the Planning Sub-
Committee when an application is to be determined or the holding of 

Page 24



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

15 
 

exhibitions and or public meetings where these are considered 
appropriate. 

 
What applications does the forum consider? 
 
5.38. Applications that may be considered by the forum include major 

applications and those of significant local interest. It is not possible to 
prescribe the exact type of proposals but they may include the 
following: 

 
•  Applications which involve more than 10 residential units or over 

1,000 sq m of floor space; 
•  Those applications that involve a major departure from the 

Council‟s planning policy; or 
•  Those applications that involve high buildings i.e. over 5 storeys. 

 
5.39. Applications that will not generally be considered by the forum include: 
 

•  Minor planning applications to alter or extend houses; 
•  Applications to confirm whether a use of land or buildings needs 

planning permission (a „lawful development certificate‟); 
•  Applications to put up advertisements;  
•  Amendments to applications or those which have already been 

the subject of a forum discussion; or 
•  Applications where there will be a recommendation for refusal.

  
 
5.40. A forum meeting will be held when: 
 

The Assistant Director, Planning/Head of Development Management, 
in consultation with the Chair of the Planning Sub-Committee, 
considers that a forum would be beneficial in resolving issues on a 
particular planning proposal.  For development management forum 
meetings held at the pre application stage site notices and emails to 
local groups and councillors will be sent advising them of a proposed 
meeting.  For those meetings held following the submission of a 
planning application consultees will be advised in accordance with the 
Council‟s consultation policy as set out in the Council‟s SCI in force at 
the time as part of the consultation on the planning application . 

 
Who can attend? 
 
5.41. Meetings are open to all Members, local businesses and residents. 

Normally one application or proposal will be considered at each forum 
to allow for effective discussion. To assist the running of the meeting 
an agenda is prepared and a short briefing note on the proposal is 
available. 

 
5.42. The format of the meeting is as follows: 
 

Page 25



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

16 
 

 A senior planning officer chairs the forum.  They ensure that all 
planning issues arising from the proposal are raised but that there is 
no discussion on the merits of the proposal.  The applicant is invited 
to make a presentation of the proposal for a maximum of 15 
minutes. 

 Local residents and organisations have an opportunity to present 
their views either for or against the proposal. 

 Planning officers provide information on the progress of the 
proposal. 

 The applicant responds to questions from Members of the Planning 
Sub-Committee, ward councillors and local business and residents. 

 
5.43.   An attendance record is kept, the discussion is recorded and a note of   

the meeting is made which is reported to the Planning Sub-Committee 
when any subsequent proposal is submitted for determination. 

 
All Members: Haringey‟s Development Management Forum 
 
5.44.  All Members can attend Development Management Forum meetings 

which are called to promote early exploration of issues relevant to a 
particular development.  They do not seek to reach any decision about 
the likely outcome of an application. 

 
5.45.  The particular role that Members can play at the meetings is dependent 

on whether or not they have a formal role within the planning system of 
the authority, for example are a member of Planning Sub-Committee or 
the Cabinet, but all Members will need to take account of the generic 
guidelines for example, publicly clarifying their particular role. 

 
5.46. All Members can: 
 

• use the meeting to understand the development, the issues 
important to local people and to the developers, and how the 
relevant policies are being applied by asking questions; 

• give advice about adopted planning policies and local priorities and 
clarify or seek clarification of policies and priorities;  

• give advice about planning processes or direct those present to 
relevant officers or other sources of advice and information both 
present or outside the meeting;  

• refer local objectors or supporters to ward colleagues who are in a 
position to take a wider role if theirs is limited and further Member 
assistance is required; and 

• seek advice from officers as to the process to be followed, issues 
being reviewed and the likely policy position. 

 
5.47.   Members should not use the forum to undertake negotiations or appear 

to put undue pressure on the officers in relation to any future decision 
on the scheme. Members are however entitled to robustly question 
developers and officers in order to fully understand issues before the 
forum. 

Page 26



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

17 
 

 
Ward Members: Development Management Forum 
 
5.48. Ward Members who are not on the Planning Sub-Committee can 

greatly assist this process by taking an active part in the forum 
meeting, asking questions, commenting on planning policies and local 
priorities, and advising on the planning process. They can usefully 
draw attention to local circumstances and issues, and comment on the 
appropriate weight to be given to those. It will be important that Ward 
Members ensure that their remarks and advice are based on adopted 
Council planning policies as far as possible. This is important to avoid 
creating any confusion in the minds of developers or local people about 
who speaks for the Council in negotiations or about the Council‟s 
negotiating position. 

 
Quality Review Panel 
 
5.49.  As part of the pre-application process for major and /or sensitive 

applications, the Council encourages applicants to present their 
proposals to the Quality Review Panel.  The panel is a group of 
independent and objective experts, including experienced architects 
and other built environment professionals, who meet on a regular 
basis. The Panel‟s advice is provided for the benefit of the Planning 
Sub-Committee. The advice will also be used to help officers and the 
developer to improve upon the quality of the scheme as it evolves.   

 
5.50. The best design outcomes generally occur when schemes are 

presented to the panel at the pre-application stage, as this allows 
applicants sufficient time to amend proposals following panel feedback. 

 

5.51.   Discussions and negotiations while the application is current but prior    
to determination: 

5.52. Once an application has been submitted, officers are working to strict 
deadlines to ensure that the application can be efficiently and properly 
determined. They may, during that period, enter into discussions, and 
sometimes negotiations, with the applicant or their agent in order to 
clarify aspects of the scheme or to ensure that the applicant is aware of 
the council‟s policy requirements. Sometimes such discussions will also 
convey to an applicant the views of third parties or consultees. 

5.54.  At this stage it is not appropriate for Members, whether or not they are 
on the Planning Sub-Committee, to enter into direct discussions and /or 
negotiations with applicants or consultees.  Members should recognise 
the clear distinction between negotiation and listening without prejudice 
to views which may be expressed to them (see the section on Lobbying 
below). For Members to enter into negotiations whilst an application is 
current at best sends a confused message to applicants and consultees 
about who is officially speaking on behalf of the Council, and at worst will 

Page 27



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

18 
 

without doubt result in the Member appearing to show bias or pre-
disposition. However, this does not prevent Members at this stage 
asking officers for information about an application, or from passing on 
the views of constituents or others, indeed this would be a proper area of 
Member activity. Members should at the same time ensure that any 
requests for advice or interpretation are passed to officers. 

Briefings/interim reports  

 
5.55.  An effective way of building a degree of certainty into pre-application or 

post submission discussions is for officers to engage with Members at 
an appropriate stage in negotiations.  Officers may prepare a committee 
report, briefing note or a site visit in order to identify the key issues that 
have emerged during discussion, and, where necessary, seek member 
endorsement to the approach that is being pursued, or simply to present 
the scheme as an information item to Members.  This provides the 
opportunity for committee Members to raise questions of their own or 
seek further information regarding the proposed development.   
 

Approaches by applicants 
 
5.56. Members of the Planning Sub-Committee will discourage any 

applicant or agent, or other interested party such as a landowner 
from approaching them directly in any way in relation to planning 
proposals.  If an approach is received, the Member will take care 
not to give any commitment, or the impression of a commitment 
that he or she holds any particular view on the matter. 

 
 
5.57. If an approach is received by a Member of the Planning Sub-

Committee from an applicant or agent or other interested party in 
relation to a particular planning application, then the Member will: 

 
(a) Inform the applicant that such an approach should be 

made to Officers of the Council; 
 

(b) Keep an adequate written record so as to enable the 
Member to disclose the fact of such an approach if and 
when the application or proposals is considered by the 
Planning Sub-Committee; and 

 
(c) Disclose the fact and nature of such an approach at any 

relevant meeting of the Planning Sub-Committee. 
 

In this context an approach should be noted where the discussion 
extends beyond simple information to the merits or demerits of 
the particular proposals. 

 
5.58.  Where a Member of the Planning Sub-Committee receives written 

representations directly in relation to a planning application, the 

Page 28



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

19 
 

Member will pass the correspondence to the Assistant Director, 
Planning/Head of Development Management in order that those 
representations may be taken into account in any report to the 
Planning Sub-Committee. 

 
The Sub-Committee meeting 
 
5.59. Planning sub-committee  meetings generally start at 7.00pm and 

the Council‟s standing orders provide that they will end at 
10.00pm except that discussion of the specific item or case in 
hand at 10.00pm may continue thereafter at the discretion of the 
Chair.  There are 11 Members of the Sub-Committee. The 
quorum for making a decision as set out in the Council‟s 
constitution is at least one quarter of the whole number of voting 
Members are present.  Where notified in advance to the Sub-
Committee Clerk and subject to them having attended the 
mandatory training, substitute Members may attend in place of a 
Planning Sub-Committee member, pursuant to the Committee 
Procedure Rules. Substitutes will be from the same political party, 
to maintain the political balance at Sub-Committee and will be 
subject to clearance from the group‟s Chief Whip. The substitute 
will be for the duration of the entire agenda and will not be used 
for individual items.    

 
Lobbying and representations  
 
5.60. The proper place for objectors to raise their concerns is in writing in 

response to public consultation on a planning application or by making 
representations at a Sub-Committee meeting. Sub-Committee 
Members may nevertheless receive lobbying material through the post 
or by email from either the applicant or the objectors or be approached 
personally by interested parties. In dealing with such approaches, it is 
important for Sub-Committee Members not to do or say anything that 
could be construed as bias or pre-determination.  

 
5.61. Where Sub-Committee Members receive lobby material through the 

post or by email they should forward it to the Assistant Director, 
Planning/Head of Development Management. If Sub-Committee 
Members feel it is necessary to acknowledge receipt of or comment on 
the correspondence, they should consider the advice on bias or 
predetermination in this Protocol and should send a copy of their 
response to the Assistant Director, Planning/Head of Development 
Management.   

 
5.62. If a Sub-Committee Member is approached by an individual or an 

organisation in relation to a particular planning application they may 
listen to what is said but they should explain that because they are a 
member of the Sub-Committee they must keep an open mind until they 
have seen all the material before the Sub-Committee. A Sub-

Page 29



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

20 
 

Committee Member might suggest that the individual or organisation 
should: 

  

 Where an application is not yet on a Sub-Committee agenda, write 
to the Planning Officer responsible for the particular case who will 
take into account any material planning considerations raised in the 
representations when preparing a report for the Sub-Committee; or 

 If the application is already on a Sub-Committee agenda contact the 
Sub-Committee Clerk to make a request to speak at the Sub-
Committee meeting. 

 
5.63. In either case contact another Member who is not a Sub-Committee 

Member to seek their support.  Generally speaking this should be the 
Ward Councillor for the Ward within which the application is made.  

 
5.64. If a Sub-Committee Member does decide to become involved in 

organising support for or opposition to a planning application or has 
offered an opinion on a planning application then that Sub-Committee 
Member must take into account the advice on bias or predetermination 
in this Protocol. If after considering that advice the Sub-Committee 
Member comes to the view that on an objective assessment they 
cannot sit on the Sub-Committee and decide the application with an 
open mind, they should not be part of the Sub-Committee that decides 
the application. They can however attend the Sub-Committee meeting 
and speak on their constituent‟s behalf and adopt the role of local 
member rather than decision taker. 

 
„Decision Maker’ role  

  
5.65. A Councillor who is a member of the Planning Sub-Committee or 

a suitably trained substitute and who takes part (or who intends to 
take part) at a meeting of the Planning Sub-Committee in the 
determination of particular Planning Application will for the 
purposes of this Protocol be a “Decision Maker” in relation to such 
Planning Application.  
  

5.66. A Councillor who is a Decision Maker shall comply with the 
provisions of the Code of Conduct generally.  
  

‘Local Member’ role of a Planning Sub-Committee member  
 
5.67. Where a Planning Sub-Committee member wishes to make 

representations on behalf of his/her constituent(s), for the 
purposes of this Protocol he/she will be a “Local Member” in 
relation to that planning application. He/she may attend a meeting 
of the Planning Sub-Committee to make representations about 
the planning application on behalf of their constituents 
  

5.68. A Councillor who is a Local Member shall comply with the Public 
Speaking Provisions and the Code of Conduct generally. Further 

Page 30



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

21 
 

provisions relating to the “Local Members” role are also contained 
in the next following section. 

 
Non Planning Sub-Committee /Local Ward Member role  
  
5.69. Subject to the provisions of the Code of Conduct generally a 

Councillor who is not a Member of the Planning Sub-Committee 
(whether or not he/she plays or intends to play the role of “Local 
Member”) will be free to:  

  

 discuss any planning application with the applicant / agent / 
objector / lobby group;  

 attend any locally organised meeting concerning the 
application; 

 attend any meeting concerning the application and speak 
about the application (including expressing a view either for or 
against the application relay relevant information about the 
application to a planning officer;   

 seek information/clarification about the application from a 
planning officer; and 

 should follow the rules on lobbying in accordance with this 
Protocol.  
 

Effect of Prejudicial etc Interests 
 

5.70. Where a Member of the Planning Sub-Committee has had any 
personal involvement with an applicant, agent or interested party, 
whether or not in connection with a particular application before 
the Planning Sub-Committee, or any other personal interest which 
an observer knowing the relevant facts would reasonably regard 
as so significant that it was likely to prejudice the member‟s 
judgement of the public interest, then the Member will declare a 
prejudicial interest in accordance with the provisions of the Code 
of Conduct (Part 5 Section A of the Council‟s Constitution). The 
Member must abstain from discussion and voting on the matter 
and leave the room while that application or other matter is under 
discussion except as provided below. The Member must also 
avoid any attempt to influence the decision improperly.  

 
5.71. A Member declaring a prejudicial or any other interest that 

precludes their determination of an item may attend during that 
item but only for the purposes of making representations about 
the matter, answering questions or giving evidence about it and 
then only when the meeting is open to the public. Otherwise the 
Member must leave the room while that application or other 
matter is under consideration. 

 
Social Contacts 

 

Page 31



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

22 
 

5.72. Members of the Planning Sub-Committee will minimise their 
social contacts with known developers and agents and refrain 
altogether from such contacts when developments are known to 
be contemplated or applications are being proposed, or where 
controversial decisions are likely to be needed. 

 
Hospitality 

 
5.73. Members of the Planning Sub-Committee will reject any offers of 

gifts, hospitality or future favours made personally or by way of 
deals for the Council or the community, from lobbyists. Any such 
improper approach will be reported immediately to the Chief 
Executive.  

 
Residents/Local Groups/ Other Occupiers 
 
5.74. If a Member of the Planning Sub-Committee is approached by 

local residents, business or other occupiers in relation to an 
application, which the residents or others wish to object to or 
support, the Member will listen to the views but will take care not 
to give any commitment, or the impression of a commitment that 
they hold any particular final view on the application. 

 
5.75. Members of the Planning Sub-Committee will: 
 

(a) Encourage the interested party to contact another Ward 
Member or other elected Member who is not a Member of 
the Planning Sub-Committee; 

 
(b) In the case of significant meetings on planning matters 

keep an adequate written record so as to enable the 
Member to disclose the fact of such an approach if and 
when the application or proposals is considered by the 
Planning Sub-Committee; and 

 
(c) Disclose the fact and nature of significant discussions at 

and relevant meeting of the Planning Sub-Committee. 
 

In this context "significant" would include any meetings or 
discussions which consider the merits or demerits of the particular 
proposals extended beyond simple information. 

 
5.76. Meetings and discussions with constituents are an important part 

of a Ward Member's functions, and this Protocol is not intended to 
harm those contacts unnecessarily.  Members of the Planning 
Sub-Committee should avoid taking an active role in meetings to 
promote residents' objections to applications.  Nothing in this 
Protocol prevents Members from listening to local concerns, 
giving factual information about an application or the planning 

Page 32



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

23 
 

process, or from directing residents to other sources of 
information or assistance. 

 
5.77. Where a Member of the Planning Sub-Committee receives written 

representations directly in relation to a planning application, the 
Member will pass the correspondence to the Assistant Director, 
Planning/Head of Development Management in order that those 
representations may be taken into account in any report to the 
Planning Sub-Committee. 

 
At Committee 
 
5.78. The responsibilities of Members of the Planning Sub-Committee 

in considering planning matters are set out above.  At the Sub-
Committee, Members will, in particular, avoid expressing any view 
on the matters under consideration until the report has been 
presented, any other relevant advice is given, and all oral 
representations have been heard. In order to participate and 
determine an item, Members must be present for the entire 
duration and not miss any part of that item. 
 

Decisions contrary to officer recommendation and/or the Plan 
 
5.79. Decisions on planning proposals have to be taken in accordance with 

the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  In determining planning and other applications the 
Committee is entitled to decide the weight to be attached to the various 
planning considerations which are relevant to the application.  This can 
lead to a decision which is contrary to the recommendation of the 
Officers. The Committee can for example decide: 

  

 to refuse planning permission where officers have recommended 
approval;  

 agree with officers that permission should be refused but for 
different reasons; or 

 grant permission subject to different conditions or legal 
requirements than those recommended.  

5.80. Where any Members are proposing to put forward a motion contrary to 
the officer recommendation, the Committee Chair will ensure that the 
planning reasons are apparent before a vote is taken.  In order to do 
this the Chair will ensure that: 

 The planning officer/legal officer is given an opportunity to explain 
to the Sub-Committee the implications of their decision; and   

 Where the Sub-Committee wish to add or amend conditions the 
planning officer is given the opportunity to draft the condition(s) and 
refer to appropriate Members, for approval. 

Page 33



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

24 
 

When the Planning Sub-Committee makes a decision which is contrary 
to the recommendation of the planning officers, whether the decision is 
one of approval or refusal, a detailed minute of the Sub-Committee‟s 
reasons for its decision will be made.  A copy of the minute will be kept 
on the application file. 

 
5.81. When a decision is made which is contrary to the Plan the material 

considerations which led to this decision and the reason(s) why they 
are considered to override the development plan will be clearly 
identified and minuted.  

 
Council Owned Land 

 
5.82. The Planning Sub-Committee from time to time considers 

applications involving land owned or recently owned by the 
Council.  Members will consider carefully whether they should 
take part in the deliberations of the Sub-Committee on an 
application, involving that land, where they took part in any 
decision of the Cabinet or other Council body in relation to the 
land.  They will take into account whether an observer with 
knowledge of all the relevant facts would suppose that there 
might be any possibility that the involvement in the decision on 
the land could amount to reaching prior conclusions on the 
planning issues, or other-wise adversely affect the Member's 
judgement in any way. 

 
5.83. Any Member, whether or not a Member of the Cabinet, will take 

great care in the consideration of applications, or local plan 
proposals, affecting land owned or recently owned by the Council 
to ensure that the planning decision is made and seen to be 
made solely on planning grounds. 

 
 
Legal Advice 
 
5.84. The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer 

will ensure that a suitably experienced legal officer is present at all 
Sub-Committee meetings to give legal, governance and procedural 
advice.  

 
5.85. Members need to be mindful of the rules on declarations of interests 

and if Sub-Committee Members or other Members require advice about 
possible disclosable pecuniary interests or other interests or if Sub-
Committee Members are in any doubt as to whether they have 
expressed a view that could give rise to the appearance of bias or that 
they have pre-determined a matter they may seek advice from the 
Monitoring Officer in advance of the Sub-Committee meeting. If that 
has not proved possible they should seek advice from the legal officer 
to the Sub-Committee before the meeting starts.  Once advice has 
been given, it is up to the Member to make their own decision on 

Page 34



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

25 
 

whether or not they have a declarable interest and whether or not they 
can participate in the decision.  

 
 

6. MEMBERS NOT ON PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
6.01. The Code of Conduct applies to all Members of Council.  The 

parts of the Protocol which will be particularly kept in mind as a 
general context for the exercise of planning functions are set out 
above. 

 
6.02. Where any Member submits representations in writing or orally in 

relation to any matter before the Sub-Committee those 
representations will be recorded for inclusion in the officer‟s 
report. 

 
6.03. Councillors who are not Members of the Planning Sub-Committee 

may attend meetings of the Sub-Committee, and  may address 
the Sub-Committee, the Committee Procedure Rules (Part 4 
Section B of the Council‟s Constitution) will apply. This requires 
the Member to give written notice to the Chair of the Sub-
Committee of his/her attendance, preferably before the meeting 
but in any event as soon as the Member arrives at the meeting. In 
order to promote efficient business of the Sub-Committee, and in 
order to give certainty to the applicant of the time available for 
speaking, Members are asked to register their intentions to speak 
by midday on the working day prior to committee with the 
Committee Clerk. 

 
6.04. Where a Councillor who is not a Member of the Planning Sub-

Committee has had any personal involvement with an applicant, 
agent or interested party, whether or not in connection with a 
particular application before the Planning Sub-Committee, or has 
any other personal interest which an observer knowing the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it 
was likely to prejudice the Member‟s judgement of the public 
interest then the Member will declare a prejudicial interest in 
accordance with the provisions of the Code of Conduct. The 
Member may only attend the meeting as provided in paragraph 
6.05 below. The Member must also avoid any attempt to influence 
the decision improperly.  

 
6.05. A Member declaring a prejudicial interest may attend the meeting 

but only for the purposes of making representations for or against 
the relevant application, answering questions or giving evidence 
about it and only when the meeting is open to the public. 
Otherwise the Member must leave the room while that application 
or other matter is under consideration. 

 

Page 35



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

26 
 

6.06. Where an approach has been received by an elected Member 
(not being a Member of Planning Sub-Committee) from an 
applicant, agent or other interested party in relation to a planning 
application, that Member will, in any informal discussions with any 
Member of the Planning Sub-Committee, disclose the fact and 
nature of such an approach and have regard to the matters set 
out at paragraph 7.01 below. 

 
 

7. OTHER CONDUCT OUTSIDE COMMITTEES 
 
7.01. In discussions between Members generally and Members of the 

Planning Sub-Committee (at party group meetings or other 
informal occasions) Members will have regard to: - 

 
(a) the principles governing the conduct of Members set out in 

the Code of Conduct. 
 

(b) the principles governing the conduct of Members of 
Planning Sub-Committee set out in this Protocol. 
 

(c) the obligations placed on Members of the Planning Sub-
Committee not to give commitments in relation to any 
planning application prior to consideration of the full officer 
report, advice and representations at the Sub-Committee 
meeting dealing therewith. 

 

8. SANCTIONS 
 
8.01. Please refer to the Complaints Against Members Protocol for the 

complaint procedure against Members and possible sanctions 
where there is an alleged breach of this Protocol and the Code of 
Conduct.. 

 
 

9. MEMBERS AND OFFICERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 
The role of elected Members  
 
9.01. In respect of any planning application Members will: 

 declare any pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest and take no part or 
a restricted part, as appropriate, in the processing and determination 
of the planning application;  

 act impartially and honestly;  

 approach each application with an open mind;  

 take into account and carefully weigh up all relevant issues;  

Page 36



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

27 
 

 determine each application on its own merits and in accordance with 
the requirements of planning law and the guidance of planning 
policy;  

 avoid inappropriate contact with interested parties (see also the 
section on lobbying ); and  

 ensure the reasons for their decision are recorded in writing. 

The role of officers 

9.02. Officers in their role of advising and assisting elected Members in their    
determination of planning applications will provide:  

 impartial and professional advice; 

 consistency of interpretation of the planning policies; and 

 complete written reports which will include: 

o  a clear and accurate analysis of the issues in the context of 
the relevant development plan policies and all other material 
considerations; 

o the substance of the representations, objections, and views 
of all those who have been consulted; 

o a clear written recommendation of action and where that 
recommendation is contrary to the development plan, the 
material considerations which justify the departure; and 

o all necessary information for the decision to be made. 

9.03. Members should not put any pressure on officers for a particular 
recommendation and, as required by the Code of Conduct or the 
Protocol on Member/ Officer Relations (Part Five section B of the 
Council‟s Constitution), should not do anything which compromises, or 
is likely to compromise, their impartiality. Members should recognise 
that officers are part of a management structure and should address 
any concerns which they may have about the handling of a planning 
application to a departmental manager at the appropriate level of 
seniority. In general, however, officers and Members should adopt a 
team approach to the determination of planning proposals, and should 
recognise and respect each other‟s different roles 

 
9.04. In common with Members generally, all Members of the Planning 

Sub-Committee may contact the relevant Planning Officer to seek 
information in relation to any planning application. 

 
9.05. Members of Planning Sub-Committee will not attempt in any way 

to influence the contents of the Officer's report or the 
recommendation made on any matter.  Representations made by 
Members whether or not in writing will be recorded by the relevant 
officer and included in the report.  

Page 37



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

28 
 

 
9.06. Any criticism of Planning Officers by Members of the Planning Sub-

Committee shall be made in writing, to the Director of Regeneration, 
Planning and Development or the Assistant Director, Planning and not 
to the Officer concerned.  Members will endeavour to avoid any public 
criticism of officers but this does not prevent Members asking officers 
proper questions. 

 
Contact between Members and officers 
 
9.07. Involving Members early and throughout the application and 

determination process leads to better committee meetings, better 
decisions and better developments.  Pre-committee meetings between 
officers and the Chair and other senior Members can enable strategic 
applications to be highlighted and procedural committee issues agreed.  
Other contact is described elsewhere in this protocol including planning 
committee briefings.  

 

10. PROTOCOL FOR HEARING REPRESENTATIONS AT 
PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
General Principles 
 
10.1. The Planning Sub-Committee will operate this Protocol with two 

particular aims regarding representations: 
 

(a) to allow those who have applied to make representations to be 
heard by the Sub-Committee on items on the agenda for the 
meeting; and  

(b) to get through the agenda expeditiously to avoid delay to 
applications and wasted journeys by the public. 

 
10.2. Objectors or supporters, including Ward or other Members where 

possible, should advise the Council by noon on the working day 
immediately prior to the Sub-Committee meeting (for a Monday 
meeting this would be by noon on the Friday prior to the Sub-
Committee) in order to allow appropriate administrative arrangements 
to be put in place.   The number of speakers will usually be limited to 
two speaking against the proposal with a time limit of 3 minutes each 
i.e a maximum of 6 minutes. Members will have a time limit of 3 
minutes each. Those supporting a proposal will be given the same time 
as those speaking against (including time taken by any Members 
objecting less any time by Members supporting). 

 
10.3. Speaking should take place immediately before the Sub-Committee 

debates a particular application (see  running order for the sub-
committee) and after the planning officer has set the scene and 
updated the meeting on any late matters not dealt with in the published 
report. 

 

Page 38



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

29 
 

10.4. The circulation of materials will not normally be accepted during the 
meeting.  If new or further material is to be allowed following the 
publication of the Sub-Committee papers it should be received in 
advance of the meeting so that it can be circulated to Members of the 
Sub-Committee. 

 
10.5. Speakers should not be allowed to engage in discussion with Members 

of the Sub-Committee during public speaking or the Sub-Committee 
deliberations, to avoid any risk of accusation of bias or personal 
interest.  

 
The procedure for addressing the Sub-Committee 
 
 10.6. Although the Committee Procedure rules allow for Members not on the 

Planning Sub-Committee, or officers outside the Planning Service who 
wish to address the Sub-Committee, to give written notice of their 
attendance to the Chair of the Sub-Committee rather than inform the 
committee clerk by 12 noon on the working day prior to committee 
Members and Council Officers are asked to inform the committee clerk 
by 12 noon  on the working day prior to committee where possible.  

 
10.7. The Chair will allow those persons outside the Council completing the 

form to address the Sub-Committee except where there are several 
people applying to speak, in which case there will be a limit as shown 
below. The right to speak shall be on a first come first served basis.  

 
10.8. For any issue which is within the Sub-Committee's terms of reference, 

but for which there is not a report on the agenda, members of the 
public may use the Deputations Procedure in accordance with the 
Committee Procedure Rules to make their representations to the Sub-
Committee.  

 
10.9. With respect to Petitions, for this Sub-Committee the requirement in the 

Council Procedure Rules for 5 days' notice will not apply so that 
members of the public may submit petitions (without addressing the 
meeting) on any issue which is within the Sub-Committee's terms of 
reference at any meeting without giving due notice.  

 
Running order for planning applications    
  
10.10. Declarations of interest will be taken at the start of the meeting 

(Members will be invited to clearly state their interest in an item and 
whether they believe it to be personal, prejudicial (including bias and 
predetermination) or pecuniary.  To include whether they will leave, 
stay, refrain from debate and whether they will vote).   

 

(a)  Announce application and give description.  

(b)  Name the public speakers. 

Page 39



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

30 
 

(c)  Advise the meeting of the declarations of interest that have been made in 
relation to the item 

(d)  Local Member declaration to represent their constituents or vote (Where a 
local Member sits on the Sub-Committee they should state whether they 
intend to vote on the application or instead to represent their constituents.  If 
representing their constituents they should move to the area reserved for 
speakers and remain there as applicable e.g. until the end of their 
contribution subject to then leaving the room). 

(e) i Planning officer presents case including update of any late representations 
or new issues, with possible supplementary presentation from other officers. 

(f) i
v 

Speaking arrangements Objectors - up to 2 speakers with a total time of 3 
minutes each .  

(g) v Any interested Councillors who have informed the committee clerk or the 
Chair in advance of the meeting may address the Sub-Committee for up to 
3 minutes each. 

(h) v
i 

The Applicant and any supporters of the proposal will have the right to 
speak if there are any speakers against the proposal and then will be 
allowed to speak for an equivalent length of time as given to those objecting 
to the application i.e. maximum of 6 minutes (subject to any 
Members‟ speaking time) the total time to be divided between them. For 
each speaker clarification questions from Members should be made through 
the Chair and should be points of fact relating to material planning 
considerations only. Questions regarding policy or guidance or law and its 
interpretation should only be dealt with by Council officers. It is expected 
that most speakers will require no clarification.  

(i) v
i
i 

 Debate – Members through Chair with support from officers / legal 
providing clarification. Sub-Committee Members debate the case and 
consider the recommendation including conditions. 

(j) V
i
i
i 

Summing up –  Chair brings discussion to conclusion and seeks a decision 
on the recommendation/alternative recommendation proposed. 

(k) i
x 

Vote and explicitly record decision s), taking vote(s) as necessary.  
Following the vote, there will be no further discussion of the item. 

(For certain cases the procedure may be varied to allow for adjournments for 
confidential legal advice.) 

The Sub-Committee will be aware that some parties listed as "objectors" can be 
overall in support of a development but be looking, for example, for some 
amendment or condition to protect their amenity. 

 
For applications which are considered but deferred 
 
10.11 Normally, the Sub-Committee will hear representations on both / all 

sides before they make a decision to defer for any reason. When the 
application is re-submitted to the Sub-Committee, further 
representations will normally only be allowed if some fresh matter has 
arisen since the first Sub-Committee meeting.  If this further 
submission is exceptionally allowed, the number of people speaking 

Page 40



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

31 
 

will be limited to one objector for a further 3 minutes.  The 
applicant/supporter will have a right to reply of 3 minutes. 

  
For larger or more contentious applications 
 
10.12.  (a) In relation to larger and/or more controversial applications (as 

agreed by the Sub-Committee), the Chair may allow double the 
number of speakers, with double the total length of time to be 
divided between them). 

 
(b) For example: in relation to para. 10.2 above this would be four 

speakers with a total of 12 minutes divided between them.    
 
(c) The applicant and any supporters will normally have a right to 

reply of the same length of time as taken by the objectors.  
 
10.13. The Sub-Committee will aim to deal with all applications, except those 

of exceptional significance, within one hour, and the Chair will take 
active steps to keep to these time-scales in the interests of all 
participants.  Members will also act to deal fairly and expeditiously and 
will therefore commit not to repeat questions.  It is expected that there 
will be a maximum of 30 minutes of questions and comments for any 
one application. 

 
 
 
Equal Opportunities 
 
10.14. The adoption and publication of a Protocol giving clear information 

about planning procedures and getting involved in decisions would 
improve access to the system by all communities in the Borough, as 
well as potential investors.  Arrangements will be put in place to make 
the policy principles within this protocol available in pamphlets in 
different languages and in larger print. 

 

11. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBER SITE VISITS 
 
Background 
 
11.01. At the Sub-Committee meeting site maps, scheme drawings and 

sometimes photographs are on display and available. Officers‟ reports 
describe relevant site characteristics, following their own site visits. 
Officer visits are not routinely made to the homes / premises of 
objectors, as adequate technical assessments can usually be made 
from maps, drawings and by visiting the application site. 

 
11.02. This site knowledge and information will usually be sufficient for the 

Sub-Committee to reach a decision on applications and accompanied 
Committee site visits will not automatically be required for all items. . 

 

Page 41



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

32 
 

11.03. The Assistant Director, Planning/Head of Development Management, 
in consultation with the Chair of the Sub-Committee, will decide which 
cases require a site visit according to the criteria set out below:  
Examples where a site visit would not normally be appropriate include 
where:  

 
1. purely policy matters or issues of principle are at issue; 
2. the report, together with drawings, photographs and other 

material is sufficient to provide the context; or  
3. where Councillors have already visited the site within the last 12 

months. 
  
11.04. Site visits where required will be normally be scheduled during daylight 

hours for the week before the Sub-Committee meeting at which the 
application is to be discussed.  
 

The purpose of site visits 
 
11.05. The purpose of such site visits is for the Members of the Sub-

Committee to see the site in order to reach an informed decision. It is 
not intended to provide a separate opportunity for objectors, 
supporters, applicants or others to lobby the Members, to argue their 
case or discuss the merits of the application.  

 
11.06. It is essential that fairness and probity are safeguarded in all the 

proceedings of the Planning Sub-Committee. This means preventing 
even the appearance of undue or unfair influence, or biased behaviour.  

 
11.07. In accordance with the Protocol, Members must avoid being involved in 

lobbying for or against an application, or reaching a firm view on an 
application before final determination at Sub-Committee. The proper 
place for discussion and presentation of views is therefore at the Sub-
Committee meeting itself.  

 
11.08. On site, without some safeguards, there is a serious risk of breaching 

the principles of fair hearings. Individual Members can hear different 
arguments from different people, and all sides are not heard equally.  

 
11.09. To ensure fairness and probity, therefore the Sub-Committee will 

observe the following Protocol for site visits. The on-site procedures 
are based on those followed by the national Planning Inspectorate.  

 
Site Visit Protocol 
 
11.10. Access to the site will be arranged with the site owners or their agent. 

In some cases arrangements will also have to be made with adjoining 
properties which have to be entered.  

 
11.11. Procedure on Site: The planning officer(s) will show the Members 

round the site(s) / area, showing relevant scheme drawings, and 

Page 42



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

33 
 

pointing out significant features. Some practical assistance from the 
owner / agent may be necessary. Members may ask officers or others 
factual questions, but will not otherwise discuss the application. An 
attendance list of the site visit should be recorded. 

 
11.12. In a few cases the Assistant Director, Planning/Head of  Development 

Management, in consultation with the Chair of the Sub-Committee, 
may decide to invite particular local residents or objectors / supporters 
to attend a site visit for the purpose of ensuring access, pointing out 
specific matters or answering factual questions. Normally, neither 
objectors nor supporters will be invited to site visits. 

 
11.13. If a site visit becomes the occasion for lobbying by numbers of people 

or for demonstrations, the visit may have to be adjourned and 
rearranged as a more private visit.  

 
11.14. As a result of the visit, the Members of the Sub-Committee may ask the 

officers to address some specific issue in the presentation to the Sub-
Committee.  

 
11.15. Any Member of the Sub-Committee who is unable to attend the official 

site visit should endeavour to visit the site him / herself before the 
meeting and will avoid any discussion of the merits of the application 
while at the site.  

 
11.16. Members of the Sub-Committee have to come to an independent view 

on an application, taking into account all relevant facts and views. If a 
Member of the Sub-Committee is unable to attend the site visit, this 
does not disqualify him / her from taking part in the final decision. The 
Member will, however, listen very carefully to the views of those 
Members who benefited from the visit. In some cases the Member may 
decide it would be better not to take part in the decision.   

 
Site visits by individual Members of the Planning Sub Committee 
 
11.17. Many Members will already be familiar with sites which are subject to 

applications but not in all cases. It is normal and proper for Members in 
these circumstances to visit a site themselves before the committee 
meeting.  Where individual Members of the committee wish to 
undertake their own site inspection, prior to the committee meeting, 
these should be conducted unannounced and from a public vantage 
point. Members of the committee should not arrange to meet 
applicants/agents or third parties for the purpose of a site inspection 
 

11.18.  If a committee member is approached on site by any applicant/agent, 
objector or other third party interest they should seek to avoid 
discussion of the application and should ensure they do not give any 
indication of their views or the likely decision of committee. Where it is 
not practical to avoid some discussion the member should note that it 

Page 43



Appendix 1 
 

6 September 2017 
 

34 
 

took place and pass the information to the officers, so that it can be 
recorded at Sub-Committee. 
 

12.0 REVIEW OF THE PROTOCOL 
 
12.01.  The protocol will be regularly reviewed to take account of: 
 

 new planning legislation; 

 changes to national codes of conduct; and 

 emerging examples of good practice. 

Page 44



 

Report for:  Standards Committee 14 September 2017 

Title: Update on Procedure and Allowances reviews 

Report   
authorised by:  Bernie Ryan, Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and 

Monitoring Officer 

Lead Officer: Michael Kay, Democratic Services Manager 
Michael.kay@haringey.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: N/A 

 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Non-key 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
1.1 This report provides an update on the work commissioned at the July 

Standards meeting, including proposals for a revised Member-Officer Protocol 
and the findings of some research on Members‘ allowances. 

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 

N/A  
 
3. Recommendations  

That the Committee: 
3.1 Give its views on the proposed contents of the Member-Officer 

Protocol (paragraph 4.8)  
3.2 Note the research on Members‘ Allowances (section 5 and Annex A) 
3.3 Give its views on potential changes to the allowances scheme, for 

development in advance of the next meeting (paragraphs 5.9, 5.15, 
5.18) 

 
4. Review of Procedures 
 
4.1 At its last meeting, the Committee agreed a number of changes to the Council‘s 

Constitution, and that there should be further consideration of the procures and 
protocols in the Council‘s Constitution. As a reminder, the following work streams 
were agreed by the Committee and Council in July:  

 
(i) Further amendments to to the Officer Scheme of Delegation, in particular 

following the departure of the AD for Corporate Property and Major 

projects; 

(ii) A review of the Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution in order to 

reduce duplication and inconsistencies, and make them easier to follow; 

(iii) The inclusion of the Planning Protocol into the Constitution, after its 

review by the Planning Sub-Committee and Regulatory Committee; 

(iv) A wholesale review of the Member – Officer Protocol, to reflect changes to 

the Council structure, governance, and officer powers, and bring the 

document up-to-date with current practices. 

Page 45 Agenda Item 7



 

4.2 Democratic Services and colleagues in Legal are continuing to consider the 
procedure rules in Part 4 of the Constitution, in particular the Council and 
Committee procedure rules, the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure rules and the 
Miscellaneous provisions. This is to remove duplication and inconsistencies, and 
will be reported to the Committee at its next meeting. 

 
4.3 Council agreed in July that the Monitoring Officer should be able to make minor 

amendments to the Constitution, which will be reported to the next meeting of 
Council. 

 
Member-Officer Protocol 
 
4.4 Officers in Democratic Services and Legal Services have considered the current 

Member-Officer Protocol, and compared it with a number of other Boroughs‘ 
(including Ealing, Hackney, Islington, Kensington and Chelsea, Sutton, Tower 
Hamlets, Waltham Forest, Westminster). 

 
4.5 At 27 pages long, Haringey‘s current protocol is far longer and more detailed 

than other boroughs‘ – which range from 4 pages to 12. The current Haringey 
protocol provides a great level of detail, which is largely out-of-date. 

 
4.6 It is proposed that a new protocol be drafted for the Committee‘s consideration at 

the next meeting, which can either be put to Council with the recommendation it 
be adopted, revised or consulted on.  

 
4.7 Based on the contents of the current protocol, and the normal practice from other 

boroughs, it is suggested the protocol include the following contents: 
 

1. Introduction – a short paragraph explaining the purpose of the protocol, 
essentially to maintain mutual trust and confidence 
 

2. Role of Councillors and Officers – setting out what is essentially a 
division of responsibilities, to distinguish that members are democratically 
elected, operate politically, make policy, act as advocates for their 
constituents; whereas officers are impartial, implement policy and are 
accountable to the Council. This will include the role of Communications 
officers, the legal framework for their work and the Members they can 
support.  

 
3. Expectations (of members and officers) – this part will be an indicative 

list of the expectations around behaviours expected, such as a worming 
partnership, mutual respect, mutual support and appropriate confidentiality 
etc (currently parts 5 and 6 of our protocol) 
 

4. Provision of Information – this part will cover the flow of information 
between officers and members, both when requested by the member 
(covering the application of the Access to Information Rules, the ‗need to 
know‘, the role of the Members Enquiry procedure) and also the provision 
of information more generally (updating ward councillors on 
issues/consultations relevant to their ward, liaising with Scrutiny, dealing 

Page 46



 

with information around emergencies, and the particular role of Cabinet 
members/Committee chairs) 
 

5. When things go wrong – covering when relations fall short of the 
protocol, including complaints against officers or Members. The preamble 
should state that informal resolution will always be preferable, but 
otherwise, for officers concerned about Members the route is the Chief 
Executive or the Monitoring Officer for Code of Conduct complaints; for 
Members concerned about Officers, the route would be to raise with the 
relevant Strategic Director, or the Chief Executive where the employee is a 
Strategic Director, or where the employee is the Chief Executive, the 
Monitoring Officer. 

 
4.8 Members are asked to give their views on whether this is a sound starting point 

for the drafting of a revised Member-Officer protocol, and whether there are any 
additional matters or points that should be included in the protocol.  

 
5. Members’ Allowances 
 
5.1 The Standards Committee has committed to undertake a comprehensive review 

of the Members‘ Allowance Scheme by the end of the current municipal year. At 
its last meeting, the Committee agreed to receive some factual information at 
this meeting to inform a discussion of the potential changes that can be 
developed in advance of its next meeting, in November, at which stage the 
Committee can decide some draft proposals and how they are consulted on. 

 
5.2 The table at Appendix A sets out Haringey‘s allowances scheme, alongside the 

guidance provided by the Independent Panel on the Remuneration of Councillors 
in London, and average values for some allowances, prepared using Councils‘ 
returns to London Councils. Attached at Annex B is an extract from the 
regulations, which sets out what responsibilities are intended for the attraction of 
allowances. The total of the basic and special responsibility allowances provided 
in the 2017-18 Haringey scheme total £1, 126, 517.  

 
Guidance 
 
5.3 As per the 2003 regulations, an extract of which is at Annex B, each council 

must take the guidance from the relevant independent panel on remuneration of 
councillors into account in the preparation of their allowances scheme. The Chair 
of the Independent Panel has recently contacted the Council as it commences its 
work for the next set of guidance. This is expected to be published soon after the 
council elections in May 2018, and would need to be taken into account by the 
Council in setting its allowances for 2019/20. 

 
5.4 The guidance takes as a starting point the overall remuneration of a borough‘s 

leader, which it recommended be equivalent to that of a Member of Parliament 
(though that figure has increased markedly since 2014, largely as a 
consequence of MPs‘ pay being set by the Independent Parliamentary 
Standards Authority).  

 

Page 47



 

5.5 Further Special Responsibility Allowances are then set out in three bands, with a 
suggested allowance per band as a proportion of the leader‘s allowance, which 
can then be expressed as a range figure. The three aspects of the allowances 
scheme – band, proportion and figure – may not all always be matched exactly 
in an allowance scheme. 

 
5.6 In Haringey‘s case, the remuneration to the leader is some way below the 

recommended figure, which has the consequence that other allowances are 
greater than the recommended proportion, though they may be within the 
recommended value range. Similarly, some roles may not be in the 
recommended band, though they fall within the recommended value range. 
Effectively, Haringey operates a flatter allowances scheme than the guidance 
suggests. 

 
5.7 If the proportions were to be replicated for Haringey based on the leader‘s total 

remuneration, the SRA at Band 3 would be between £20 302 and £24 731, Band 
2 between £7, 013 and £15, 873 and Band 1 up to £2, 585 (the basic allowance 
is above 20% of the leader‘s total remuneration).  

 
5.8 The 2014 guidance recommended that allowances be increased by 1 per cent 

annually, in line with public sector pay. Haringey has not followed that 
recommendation since 2014 – which appears to be consistent with the approach 
taken in other boroughs. 

 
5.9 Members may wish to consider the guidance, and in particular whether 

Haringey‘s allowances are significantly out of step with the guidance – in terms 
of the band, the proportion or the value of the allowance.  

 
Comparisons 
 
5.10 The table includes an average figure for some special responsibility 

allowances, where they have been able to identified – these should be compared 
with the SRA column, rather than the Total Allowance.  

 
5.11 The final column sets out the average for Haringey‘s ‗statistical neighbours‘, 

meaning the boroughs that are most similar to Haringey demographically. These 
are Croydon, Enfield, Greenwich, Hackney, Hammersmith & Fulham, Islington, 
Lambeth, Lewisham, Southwark and Waltham Forest. Some of these boroughs 
were omitted from the calculation of certain averages – for example, Hackney 
and Lewisham each have directly elected mayors, who are provided for in a 
different band in the guidance than the leader and therefore not directly 
comparable. 

 
5.12 While some allowances are more readily comparable between boroughs, 

some bands are more difficult to compare given the different committee 
arrangements in boroughs. The table below draws out specific allowances to 
enable more easy comparison.  

 
5.13 With the exception of the leader‘s allowance, Haringey‘s allowances are 

generally slightly larger than the average figure for London boroughs or its 

Page 48



 

statistical neighbours. The number of bands that Haringey‘s scheme includes is 
not unusual, with a number of other boroughs‘ schemes including sub-bands. 

 
5.14 Some Boroughs offer variable allowances – for example on the completion of 

a scrutiny project. Barking and Dagenham offer a per-seat rate for political group 
leaders, over a set minimum, and Lewisham has different allowance levels 
according to the size of a political group. This point is not addressed explicitly in 
the guidance. 

 
5.15 Members may wish to indicate specific issues on which they would like further 

research, for example whether some boroughs provide allowances for roles that 
are not currently included in the Haringey scheme.  

 
Co-opted allowances 
 
5.16 Members may wish to note that an allowance of £616.50 is provided to the 

Statutory Co-optees on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (education 
representatives) and the Combined Pensions Committee and Board (employee 
and employer representatives). In addition, the independent persons that support 
the Standards Committee, in particular in the consideration of complaints under 
the Members Code of Conduct, receive an allowance outside the Members‘ 
Allowances Scheme. 

 
5.17 Under Haringey‘s current Allowances Scheme, Members are also able to 

claim a Babysitting/Dependents Allowance, of £8.60 per hour, though this is 
rarely claimed in practice. The guidance recommends that this be at not less 
than the London Living Wage (currently £9.75 per hour). 

 
Next Steps 
 
5.18 Following the consideration of this research, Members may wish to discuss 

their views on Haringey‘s allowances scheme, and identify the priorities for the 
development of options for the allowances scheme, to be considered at the next 
meeting.  

 
5.19 This could include whether certain roles should attract an allowance but do 

not at present, whether the overall structure of allowances is correct, whether 
allowances are offered at the right level, and whether the current allowances 
scheme can accommodate different outcomes of the May 2018 elections.  

 
6. Contribution to strategic outcomes 

N/A  
 

7. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
 
Finance and Procurement 
There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in 
this report. The financial implications of the Committee‘s work, in particular the 
review of Members‘ allowances, will be set out for Members at the relevant 

Page 49



 

time, though Members should bear in mind that there is a finite budget 
available to Local Democracy and Members‘ Services, where Members‘ 
allowances are provided from.  

 
Legal 
The Assistant Director for Corporate Governance has been consulted on the 
contents of this report. 
 

 Equality 
There are no direct equalities implications arising from the recommendations 
in this report. Equalities impacts of the Committee‘s work, in particular the 
scheme of Members‘ Allowances, will be set out for Members at the relevant 
time.  

8. Use of Appendices 
Appendix A – Table showing Haringey‘s Members‘ Allowances Scheme, 
guidance and comparators 
Appendix B – Extract from the Local Authorities (Members‘ Allowances) 
(England) Regulations 2003 
 

4. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
London Borough of Haringey Constitution 
Report of the Independent Panel on the Remuneration of Councillors in London 
(2014) 

 

Page 50



Appendix A 

 

Haringey Guidance from the Independent Panel 
on the Remuneration of Councillors in 

London (2014) 

London 
Average SRA 

Statistical 
Neighbour 
Av. SRA 

Band Position SRA 
Total 

Allowance 

Basic  All Councillors  £10, 703 £10, 703 £10, 064 £10, 337 

Band 4  Leader £33, 590 £44, 293 
Band 4: SRA of £54,769, meaning total 
remuneration of £65 472 

£37,177 £39,760 

Band 3B 
 9 or fewer x Cabinet 

Members 

 Opposition Leader 

£25, 191 
£35, 894 

 
81% of leader 

Band 3 includes:  
• Cabinet member 
• Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
• Chair of the main overview or scrutiny 

committee 
• Deputy leader of the council 
 
70-80% of leader‘s remuneration, 
meaning SRA of £35,128 to £41,675  

Cab Member: 
£20, 864 
 
Op Leader: 
£15, 090 

Cab 
Member: 
£25, 289 
 
Op Leader: 
£16, 249 

Band 3A 
 Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee Chair 
£22, 905 

£33, 608 
 

76% of leader 
 £17, 507 

Band 2B 

 Corporate Committee 
Chair 

 Chief Whip 

 Regulatory Committee 

 Alexandra Palace and 
Park Board 

 Opposition Deputy 
Leader 

 Opposition Chief Whip 

 (also Mayor) 

£16, 797 
£27, 500 

 
62% of leader 

Band 2 includes: 
• Lead member in scrutiny arrangements, 

such as chair of a scrutiny panel 
• Representative on key outside body 
• Chair of major regulatory committee e.g. 

planning 
• Chair of council business (civic mayor) 
• Leader of principal opposition group 
• Majority party chief whip (in respect of 

council business). 
 
40-60% of leader‘s remuneration, 

meaning SRA of £15,486 to £28,581 

Main 
(planning) 
Committee 
Chairs:  
£12, 601 
 
Mayor:  
£13, 611 

Main 
(planning) 
Committee 
Chairs:  
£11, 518 
 
Mayor:  
£13, 865 

Band 2A 
4 x Councillors serving on 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (panel chairs) 

£15, 268 
£25, 971 

 
59% of leader 

 £8, 810 

P
age 51



Appendix A 

Haringey Guidance from the Independent Panel 
on the Remuneration of Councillors in 

London (2014) 

London 
Average SRA 

Statistical 
Neighbour 
Av. SRA 

Band Position SRA 
Total 

Allowance 

Band 1 

 Combined Pensions 
Committee & Board 
Chair 

 Staffing & 
Remuneration 
Committee Chair 

 Standards Committee 
Chair 

£8, 398 
£19,101 

 
43% of leader 

Band 1 includes: 
• Vice chair of a service, regulatory or 

scrutiny committee 
• Chair of sub-committee 
• Leader of second or smaller opposition 

group 
• Service spokesperson for first 

opposition group 
• Group secretary (or equivalent) of 

majority group 
• First opposition group whip (in respect 

of council business) 
• Vice chair of council business 
• Chairs, vice chairs, area committees 

and forums or community leaders 
• Cabinet assistant 
• Leadership of a strategic major topic 
• Acting as a member of a committee or 

sub-committee which meets with 
exceptional frequency or for 
exceptionally long periods 

• Acting as a member of an adoption 
panel where membership requires 
attendance with exceptional frequency 
or for exceptionally long periods 

• Leadership of a specific major project. 
 
20-30% of leader‘s remuneration, 

meaning SRA of £2, 392 to £8, 941 

£6, 290 £6, 745 

Deputy 
Mayor 

 £4, 196 
£14, 899 

34% of leader 
£4, 460 £5, 093 

 

P
age 52



Appendix B 

  

Extract from the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) 
Regulations 2003 
 
Special responsibility allowance 
 
5.— 
(1) A scheme made under this Part may provide, in accordance with paragraph (2), for 
the payment for each year for which that scheme relates of an allowance (―special 
responsibility allowance‖) to such members of the authority as have such special 
responsibilities in relation to the authority as are specified in the scheme and are within 
one or more of the following categories—  
 

(a) acting as leader or deputy leader of a political group within the authority; 
 

(b) acting as a member of an executive where the authority are operating executive 
arrangements within the meaning of Part II of the Local Government Act 2000; 

 
(c) presiding at meetings of a committee or sub-committee of the authority, or a 

joint committee of the authority and one or more other authorities, or a sub-
committee of such a joint committee; 

 
(d) representing the authority at meetings of, or arranged by, any other body; 

 
(e) acting as a member of a committee or sub-committee of the authority which 

meets with exceptional frequency or for exceptionally long periods; 
 

(f) acting as the spokesman of a political group on a committee or sub-committee 
of the authority; 

 
(g) acting as a member of an adoption panel within the meaning of the Adoption 

Agencies Regulations 1983(1); 
 

(h) acting as a member of any committee or sub-committee that deals with any 
function arising under any enactment authorising the authority to license or 
control the carrying on of any activity; 

 
(i) carrying out such other activities in relation to the discharge of the authority‘s 

functions as require of the member an amount of time and effort equal to or 
greater than would be required of him by any one of the activities mentioned in 
sub-paragraphs (a) to (h) (whether or not that activity is specified in the 
scheme). 

 
(2) Any scheme making such provision as is mentioned in paragraph (1) shall—  
 

(a) specify the amount of each special responsibility allowance, which need not be 
the same; 

 
(b) provide that, where— 

 
(i) members of an authority are divided into at least two political groups; 
and 
 

Page 53



Appendix B 

  

(ii) a majority of members of the authority belong to the same political 
group (―the controlling group‖), 

 
a special responsibility allowance shall be paid to at least one person who is 
not a member of the controlling group and has special responsibilities 
described in paragraph (1)(a) or (f); and  

 
(c) provide that where a member does not have throughout the whole of a year any 

such special responsibilities as entitle him to a special responsibility allowance, 
his entitlement shall be to payment of such part of the special responsibility 
allowance as bears to the whole the same proportion as the number of days 
during which he has such special responsibilities bears to the number of days in 
that year. 

 
(3) The scheme may specify that where a member is suspended or partially 
suspended from his responsibilities or duties as a member of an authority in 
accordance with Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 or regulations made under 
that Part, the part of special responsibility allowance payable to him in respect of the 
responsibility or duties from which he is suspended or partially suspended may be 
withheld by the authority. 

 

Page 54



Document is exempt

Page 55 Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the last meeting
	6 Adoption of Planning Protocol (2017) into the Constitution
	2017 Planning Protocol - track September2017

	7 Update on work programme - review of procedures and Members' Allowances
	11 Minutes of the Standards Assessment Sub-Committee held on 6 July 2017

